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[. INTRODUCTION

On May 6, 2014Plaintiff Commodity Futures Trading Commission (“Commission” or
“CFTC”) filed anAmended Complaint For Injunctive And Other Equitable Relief And For Civil
Monetary Penalties Under The Commodity Exchange Act And Commission Regulations
(“Amended Complaint”) aginst Defendants Banc de Binaktyd. (“BdB Ltd.”), E.T. Binary
Options, Ltd. (“ETBQ”), BO Systems, Ltd. (“BO Systems”), BDB Services, Ltd. (“BDB
Services”) (collectively, “Corporate Defendants”) and Oren Laurent (a/k/a Oren Shabat and Oren
Cohen) (“Laurent”) (collectively, “Defendants”) seeking injunctive and other equitable relief, as
well as the imposition of civil penalties, for violations of the Commodity Exchange Act (“CEA”
or “Act”), 7 U.S.C. 88 let seq(2012), and the Commission’s Regulations (“Regulations”)
promulgated thereunder, 17 C.F.R. 88dt.$eq(2015) [DE # 52]. The Court entered a Consent

Order for Preliminary Injunction against BdB Ltd. on July 18, 2013 [DE # 24].

[I. CONSENTS AND AGREEMENTS

To effect settlement of all charges alleged in the Amended Complaint against Defendant
without a trial on the merits or anyrfber judicial proceedings, Defendants:

1. Consent to the entry of this Consent Order for Permanent Injunction, Civil
Monetary Penalty and Oth&quitable Relief Against Dendants (“Consent Order”);

2. Affirm that they have read and agré¢edhis Consent Order voluntarily, and that

no promise, other than as spewdliy contained herein, or threat, has been made by the CFTC or

! Defendants have also reacledroposed settlement in principle that would resolve the

actionSEC v. Banc de Binary Ltd et,aCase No. 2:13-cv-00993-RCE¥ (“SEC Action”). As
part of a global settlement of both actions, the restitution obligations described inér&jiRart
V, Paragraphs 92-101, are intended to resolvéstue of restitution in both this action and the
SEC Action.



any member, officer, agent or representative tHeoedoy any other person, to induce consent to
this Consent Order;

3. Acknowledge service of the summonsgmal Complaint against BdB Ltd.
(“Complaint”) and Amended Confgant against BdB Ltd., ETBO, BO Systems, BDB Services
and Laurent;

4. Admit the jurisdiction of this Court over them and the subject matter of this action
pursuantto 7 U.S.C. 8§ 13a-1 (2012);

5. Admit the jurisdiction of the CFTC overdltonduct and transactions at issue in
this action pursuant to 7 U.S.C. §8tlseq(2012);

6. Admit that venue properly lies with this Court pursuantto 7 U.S.C. 8§ 13a-1(e)
(2012);

7. Waive

(@) Any and all claims that they may posseinder the Equal Access to Justice Act, 5
U.S.C. 8§ 504 (2012) and 28 U.S.C. § 2412 (20429)/or the rules promulgated by the
Commission in conformity therewith, 17 C.F.R. 88 14&.%eq(2015), relating to, or arising
from, this action;

(b) Any and all claims that they may $g®ss under the Small Business Regulatory
Enforcement Fairness Act of 1996, Pub. L. No. 104-121, 8§ 201-253, 110 Stat. 847, 857-868
(1996), as amended by Pub. L. No. 110-283@2, 121 Stat. 112, 204-205 (2007), relating to, or
arising from, this action;

(© Any claim of Double Jeopardy basapon the institution of this action or the
entry in this action of any order imposing a ciibnetary penalty or amther relief, including

this Consent Order; and



(d) Any and all rights of appeal from this action;

8. Consent to the continued jurisdictiontbis Court over them for the purpose of
implementing and enforcing the terms and coadgiof this Consent Order and for any other
purpose relevant to this action, even if Defemd, individually or collectively, now or in the
future reside outside the jurisdiction of this Court;

9. Agree that they will not oppose enforcement of this Consent Order on the ground,
if any exists, that it fails to comply with Rule 65(d) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and
hereby waives any objection based thereon;

10.  Agree that neither they nor any of thegeats or employees under their authority
or control shall take any action prake any public statement denyjmirectly or indirectly, any
allegation in the Complaint, Amended Complaortthe Findings of Fact and Conclusions of
Law in this Consent Order, or creating or tending to create the impression that the Complaint,
Amended Complaint and this Carg Order is without a factubhsis; provided, however, that
nothing in this provision shall affect their: (aytienonial obligations, or (b) right to take legal
positions in other proceedings to which the CR3 @ot a party. Defendants shall undertake all
steps necessary to ensure that all of theirtagerd/or employees under their authority or control
understand and comply with this agreement;

11. By consenting to the entry of this CensOrder, Defendants neither admit nor
deny the allegations of the Complaint, Amedd&omplaint, or the Findings of Fact and
Conclusions of Law in this Consent Order, except as to jurisdiction and venue, which they admit.
Further, Defendants agree and intend that llegations contained in the Complaint, Amended
Complaint and all of the Findings of Fact andh€loisions of Law contained in this Consent

Order shall be taken as truedacorrect and be given preclusive effect, without further proof, in



the course of: (a) any proceeding pursuam thS.C. § 12a (2012), and/or 17 C.F.R. 88-3.1

3.75 (2015); and/or (b) any proceeding to enfdaheeterms of this Consent Order. Defendant
Laurent agrees and intends that the allegations contained in the Complaint, Amended Complaint
and all of the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law contained i€tmsent Order shall be

taken as true and correct and be given preclusive effect, witirthugr proof in the course of

any current or subsequent bankruptcy proceefiled) by, on behalf ofpr against Defendant

Laurent. Defendants do not consent to the uski®Consent Order, or the Findings of Fact and
Conclusions of Law in this Consent Order, asgble basis for any other proceeding brought by

the Commission.

12. Agree to provide immediate notice to this Court and the CFTC by certified mail,
in the manner required by Paragraph 107 of Part VI of this Consent Order, of any bankruptcy
proceeding filed by, on behalf of, or against Defendants, individually or collectively, whether
inside or outside the United States;

13.  Agree that no provision of this Consent Order shall in any way limit or impair the
ability of any other person or entity to seek any legal or equitable remedy against Defendants in
any other proceeding.

[ll. FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS

The Court, being fully advised in the premises, finds that there is good cause for the entry
of this Consent Order and that there is nofjeason for delay. The Court therefore directs the
entry of the following Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, permanent injunction, restitution,
civil monetary penalty and egable relief pursuantto 7 8.C. § 13a-1 (2012), as set forth

herein.



THE PARTIES AGREE AND THE COURT HEREBY FINDS:

A. FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The Parties To This Consent Order

14. Plaintiff Commodity Futures Tradir@ommission is an independent federal
regulatory agency that is charged by Congress with administering and enforcing the Act,
7 U.S.C. 88 ket seq(2012), and the Regulations promaled thereunder, 17 C.F.R. 88 &t1
seq (2015).

15. DefendanBanc de Binary Ltd. has been incorporated in the Republic of Cyprus
since February 2012, and is licensed as arsinvent firm with the Cyprus Securities and
Exchange Commission (“CySEC”). BdB Ltd. operatesler the trade name Banc de Binary.
During the period from at least May 201tahgh at least June 2013 (“Relevant PeriddByB
Ltd. had offices at Kristelina Towers, 12 Arch Marakiou IIf, Boor Office 301, Mesa Yeitonia,
Limassol, Cyprus. BdB Ltd. has never been desaghas a contract market by the Commission,
is not an exempt board of trade, and is nobaa fideforeign board of trade pursuantto 7 U.S.C.
8§ 6(a) & (b) (2012).

16. DefendanE.T. Binary Options Ltd. has been incorporated in Israel since
February 2010. During the Relevant PeriodBBToperated under the trade name Banc de
Binary and maintained a business address and operates out otanroffirael located at 3 Ha
Macabin Street Petach Tikva, Israel, 49220. ARGHO, it maintained a virtual office located at

Trump Tower, 40 Wall Street, New York, New o ETBO has never been designated as a

% The phrase “During the Relevant Period” as Lisetlis Consent Order means only at some
time or time(s) within the period, and does not mean throughout the period, as certain of the
Corporate Defendants were incorporated withe period. Paragraphs 15-18 set forth the
incorporation dates for each of the Corporate Defendants.



contract market by the Commission, is noeaempt board of trade, and is ndiana fide
foreign board of trade pursuantZdJ.S.C. 88 6(a) & (b) (2012).

17. DefendanBO Systems Ltd.has been incorporated in the Republic of Seychelles
since February 2012. BO Systems has operatddr the trade name Banc de Binary. During
the Relevant Period, it ndained a business address at P@émier Building, Victoria, Meha,
Seychelles. BO Systems has never been desijasta contract market by the Commission, is
not an exempt board of trade, and is nbbraa fideforeign board of trade pursuantto 7 U.S.C.

88 6(a) & (b) (2012). In March 2013, BO Systems edds operate and transferred some or all
of its operations to BDB Services.

18. DefendanBDB Services Ltd.has been incorporated in the Republic of
Seychelles since March 2013. BDB Services hasatge under the name Banc de Binary. It
maintains business addresse$@ Premier Building, Victoa, Meha, Seychelles, and 1
Shoham Street, Ramat-Gan, Israel. BDB Sendiessnever been designated as a contract
market by the Commission, is not areext board of trade, and is ndb@na fideforeign board
of trade pursuant to 7 U.S.C. 88 6(a) & (b) (2012).

19. DefendanOren Shabat Laurent, also known as Oren Shabat and Oren Cohen, is
a citizen of the United States and of Israel and presently resides in Israel. Laurent was and is an
owner, director and officer of BdB Ltd., ETBOh&BO Systems, and was an owner and director
of BDB Services until at least August 2013. &lttimes relevant, Larent had actual or
constructive knowledge of thedal allegations set forth in Paragraphs 20-48 below.

2. The Corporate Defendants

20.  All the conduct describdterein was undertaken by Corporate Defendants’

employees and agents, including, but not limited to, Laurent.



a. The Overlapping Businesses

21. Laurent founded Banc de Binary in or about 2010.

22. ETBO owns the trade name Banc de Binand has granted licenses to each of
the Corporate Defendants to use that trade name.

23. During the Relevant Period, a websiperating under the trade name Banc de
Binary held itself out as being headquartered at 40 Wall Street, New York, New York (the “Wall
Street Office”), and as having officeskaistelina Towers, 12 Arch Makariou I11/%3Floor
Office 301, Mesa Yeitonia, Limads&yprus, among other places.

24. Banc de Binary conducts a significanitjzd their business through its website
located at www.bbinary.com. In addition, BancRieary also maintam affiliated websites at
www.bancdebinary.com and www.bbinary.net, among others. Collectively, these websites
comprise the Banc de Binary website (“Bandileary website” or “website”). Defendants did
not differentiate between the companies on thecBke Binary website, in Banc de Binary
solicitation materials, or in communications wignc de Binary customers, including U.S.
customers.

25.  Throughout the Relevant Period, ETBO stdit and offered to trade with U.S.
and foreign customers binary options through the Banc de Binary website and through e-mail
and other communications and acted as the eqpautty to those transactions. In addition,
ETBO entered into, confirmed the execution ofp@intained a position in, and solicited and
accepted U.S. customer orders and fundgsedféhrough the Banc d&nary website, and
through email and other communications, includiogn U.S. customers, who were not eligible

contract participants (“ECPs”).



26. During the Relevant Period, BO Systesubcited and offered to trade with U.S.
customers binary options, including U.S. custosithat were not ECPs, through the Banc de
Binary website, and through e-mail and othenownications and acted as the counterparty to
those transactions. In addition, BO Systemed into, confirmed the execution of or
maintained a position in, and accepted U.S. custarders and funds offered through the Banc
de Binary trading website, and througme# and other communications, including U.S.
customers that were not ECPs.

27.  Atleast from June 2012 to March 2013,

e BdB Ltd. provided banking and clearing services to BO Systems and
accepted funds from customers, including U.S. customers who were
not ECPs, as BO System’s financial agent, for the trading of binary
options;

e BdB Ltd. and BO Systems had accesand used the same binary
options trading platform to accept orders and execute binary option

trades with customers, including U.S. customers; and

e ETBO provided BdB Ltd. and BO Systems marketing and customer
support services in relation to the Banc de Binary trading platform.

28. In or about March 2013, Laurent creaBdaB Services. At or about the same
time, BO Systems ceased its operations and transferred some or all of its operations to BDB
Services.

29.  Since March, 2013:

e BdB Ltd. provided banking and clearing services to BDB Services and
accepted funds from customers, inchgllJ.S. customers who were not ECPs,
as BDB Services’ financial agent (from March 2013-August 2013), for the
trading of binary options;

e BdB Ltd. and BDB Services had access to and used the same binary options

trading platform to accept orders aneeute binary option transactions with
customers, including U.S; and



e ETBO provided BDB Services marketiagd customer support services in
relation to the Banc de Binary trading platform.

30. The binary options trading platform utilized by the Corporate Defendants to place
orders and execute binary options with U.S. fam€ign customers, is the same trading platform
used to place orders and execute binary options through the Banc de Binary website.

b. Common Ownership and Control

31. Laurent owns, manages and controls the Banc de Binary trade name that the
Corporate Defendants use to conduct their binary options business.

32. Laurent is the founder, president, CEO, a director and, along with his father, one
of two equal beneficial owners of BdB Ltérom its inception to 2012, Laurent was the sole
shareholder of ETBO, and since March 2013, leelden one of three owners of ETBO, the
other two owners being Laurent’stiar and his brother. Laurent is and has always been the sole
director of ETBO. He is a signatory on ETBO bank accounts.

33. From its creation and during all relevant times, Laurent was the sole owner of BO
Systems, and a director, officer or agenthaf company. He has executed contracts on BO
Systems’ behalf, including contracts with Bi&l. and ETBO. During the Relevant period,
Laurent, along with his father, was one of twaigdoeneficial owners and a director, officer or
agent of BDB Services. He has executed cordgraetBDB Services’ behalf, including contracts
with BdB Ltd. and ETBO.

34. Laurent holds himself out both commercially and to regulators as the person
primarily responsible for Banc de Binary’'s messs activities. During thRelevant Period he
has been actively involved in the managemedtgeneral business of each of the Corporate

Defendants.
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35. Laurent speaks on behalf of Banc de Binary to the news media and in numerous
promotional videos on YouTube. He also hasrgersonally involved in responding to certain
customer grievances. Through the videos and other media appearances, Laurent promotes
trading in binary option to U.S. customerslan this way was involved in soliciting U.S.
customers to open accounts with Banc de Binary.

3. The Banc de Binary Website

36. The Banc de Binary website is an intg trading platform through which Banc
de Binary solicits, accepts money from, and exextrages with U.S. customers to trade binary
options. Through the Banc de Binary websitestomers buy or sell binary “call” or “put”
options that allow them to predict whether thie@of a certain “asset” will go “up” or “down”
at a future date and/or time.

37. During the Relevant Period, the Banileary website offered for purchase to
U.S. customers with Banc de Binary as the cexpdrty to the customers’ transactions, binary
options on dozens of “assets,” including commoditeeg,(wheat, oil, gold, platinum, sugar,
coffee, corn, etc.), forex pairse.g, EUR/USD, GBP/USD, USD/JP¥fc.), and stock indices
(e.g, S&P 500, NASDAQ futures, etc.).

38. Once customers opened and funded accoutsgh the Banc de Binary website,
customers executed trades by selecting a particular asset on the website and predicting if that
asset’s current price will go up or down on a date and time certain. For example, customers who
predicted that the price of aalill rise above the then-curreptice listed on the website on a
specific future expiration date or time, execute a “Call Option” by clicking the “UP” button on
the website. Conversely, customers who predittiat the price of oil will fall below the then-

current price listed on the website on a specific future expiration date or time, execute a “Put

11



Option” by clicking the “DOWN” button on the website. The Banc de Binary website permitted
customers to execute trades from between $1,@H8and to pick the date and time of contract
expiration. The Banc de Binary website alstsli by “asset” or contract, the “Payout” or

“return” should the predicted event occur.

39. During the Relevant Period, U&istomers opened trading accounts on the
website, which they accessed in the U.S.,teadled binary options. The options traded
included, but were not limited tpredictions about future price changes of, among other things,
coffee, gold, the US dollar/Japanese Yen forex pair, the Euro/Japanese Yen forex pair, and the
S&P 500 index.

40. During the Relevant Period, U.S. @mers initiated and executed these options
trades on the Banc de Binary website throcgmputer terminals located in the U.S.

41. To fund their Banc de Binary tradimccounts and make the trades, U.S.
customers transferred funds from the U.S. to Banc de Binary by credit card, wire transfer, check
or third party payment systems., MoneyBookers E-wallet, Alertpay E-wallet, etc.) to foreign
bank accounts maintained in theme of Banc de Binary over which Banc de Binary had
beneficial control and interest.

42.  Throughout the Relevant Period, thepiboate Defendants f&fred to, solicited,
and accepted orders from, and executed tradbdJAS. customers who are not ECPs. U.S.
users of the website were not required to submytinformation about their net worth, or assets,
or prior trading experience to open a tradaccount on the website, and the Corporate
Defendants executed trades with U.S. customatBput inquiring into or confirming such

customers’ net worth, assets or prior trading history.

12



4, The Bonus Program

43. During the Relevant Period, in additimnthe website, the Corporate Defendants
also actively solicited U.S. customers located in the U.S. via telephone, e-mails, and other
communications to participate in Bade Binary’s “bonus” programs.

44, In their solicitations, Corporate Defendants and Banc de Binary claimed they
would provide a certain “deposit me” amounting to a specified mentage of customer funds.
For example, according to the website, if toenpany “offers you a 50% deposit match of up to
$50,000, it means that if you open a new realtiggdccount and make a first deposit of $1,200,
Banc [d]e Binary will instantly fund your accounith an additional $600 that will go straight to
your trading balance allowing you to teadith $1800 instead of the $1,200 you initially
deposited.” The website claims that this bofgiges you great value and extra trading
leverage.” The “terms and conditions” thre website note that, upon accepting the bonus,
customers are prohibited from withdrawing furidsn their trading account, including
apparently their own funds initially invested, unless and until the customer trades at least 20
times the value of his or her trading agnt, or, in the example provided above, $36,0@Q (
$1,200 plus $600 multiplied by 20 = $36,000).

45.  Certain of the customers that tradahby options through the website signed up
for the bonus program.

46. The binary options executed by custonarpart of the bonus program, including
those executed by U.S. customers, were retail commodity transactions within the meaning of the
CEA because they were leveraged or margined or financed by Banc de Binary and the Corporate

Defendants.

13



5. The Banc de Binary Business’s Ongoing Activity

47.  On April 9, 2014, the CFTC filed a Motion for Order to Show Cause Why
Defendant [Banc de Binary Ltd.] Should Notleld in Contempt for Violation of Injunction
(“Motion for Order to Show Cause”) [DE #48], aiag violations of the Preliminary Injunction
Order due to a transaction with a single W$tomer. The CFTC subsequently supplemented
its Motion for Order to Show Cause on JuneZLBL5 [DE #133], allegingditional transactions
with U.S. customers that violated the Ifnenary Injunction Order. Defendants responded to
both the Motion for Order to Show Cause [DE #56] and the Motion to Supplement [DE #141]
and challenged the number of transactions at is§he.CFTC filed replies to each, respectively.
[DE #58, #144.]

48. On August 11, 2015, the Court held a hearing on the CFTC’s Motion for Order to
Show Cause and found that DefantdBanc de Binary violated the terms of the Preliminary
Injunction Order. [DE #152].

B. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. Jurisdiction and Venue

49. 7 U.S.C. § 13a-1(a) (2012) authorizes the Commission to seek injunctive relief
against any person whenever it shall appettedCommission that such person has engaged, is
engaging, or is about to engage in any agtractice constituting a violation of the Act or any
rule, regulation, or order thereunder.

50. The Commission has jurisdiction over the condumnel transactions at issue in this
case pursuantto 7 U.S.C. 88 2(c)(2) & 13a-1 (2012).

51.  Venue properly lies witthe Court pursuant to 7 U.S.C. § 13a-l(e) (2012),

because the acts or practices in violation of the CEA and the Regulations have occurred, are

14



occurring, or are about to occur within thissBict, among other plas, and because one or
more of the Defendants transact or transacted business in this District.

2. The Corporate Defendants and Banc de Binary Operated as a Common
Enterprise as a Matter of Law

52.  “[E]ntities constitute a common enterprise when they exhibit either vertical or
horizontal commonality — qualities that may be demonstrated by a showing of strongly
interdependent economicémests or the pooling @fssets and revenuesTC v. Network
Services Depot, Inc617 F.3d 1127, 1142-43%€ir. 2010). The Ninth Circuit has looked to
the following factors in determining whether companies have acted as a common enterprise: (1)
whether the companies have pooled resoustaf, and funds; (2) whether they have common
ownership and management; and (3) whether they have participatéshared business
scheme” and “common revenudd. at 1143F.T.C. v. Health Formulas, LLQNo. 2:14-CV-
01649-RFB, 2015 WL 2130504, at *6 (D. Nev. May 6, 2015).

53. Under this test, ETBO, BO Systems and BDB Services operated as a common
enterprise during the Relevant Period. BdB.ldperated as part of the common enterprise
during at least part of the Rgant Period. Laurent and faginembers owned and controlled
each corporate entity comprising the Banc de Binary enterprise; the corporate Defendants shared
business addresses; the corporate entities’ business activities were interrelated and entwined; and
BdB Ltd. operated as both BO Systems’ and BDB Services’ financial agent, and provided them
banking and clearing servicdsring the Relevant Period.

54.  Thus, as a matter of law, BdB Ltd., ETBO, BO Systems and BDB Services

operated as a common enterpdseing the Relevant Period.

15



3. The Binary Options Offered by Defendants are
Commodity Options Under the CEA and CFTC Requlations

55.  The binary options offered by Banc de Binary are “commodity options” under the
Act and Regulations: (1) they are “of the character of” or are “commonly known to the trade as”
options; and (2) Banc de Binary holds them out to be options, puts and calls and promotes to the
public that it is offering options.

56.  The binary options offered on the website to U.S. customers were not excepted or
exempted from the Commission’s ban on trading options off-exchange.

57. None of the Corporate Defendants are or have ever been a DCM, EBGTaor
fide FBOT.

4. Defendants BdB Ltd., ETBO, and BO Systems Violated

7U.S.C. 86¢(b)and 17 C.F.R 88 32.2 and 32.11 (2012),
and Laurent Is Liable Under 7 U.S.C. 13c(b) (2012)

58. 7 U.S.C. § 6¢(b) (2012), makes it unlawful to
offer to enter into, enter into or confirm the execution of, any
transaction involving any commodity regulated under the Act
which is of the character of, or is commonly known to the trade as,
an “option”, “privilege”, “indemnity”, “bid”, “offer”, “put”, “call”,
“advance guaranty”, or “decline guaranty”, contrary to any rule,
regulation, or order of the Commission prohibiting any such
transaction or allowing any such transaction under such terms and
conditions as the Commission shall prescribe.

59. 17 C.F.R. 8 32.2 (2012) (repealed JR6£2012), provides that, notwithstanding
the requirements of 17 C.F.R. § 32.11 (2012) (repealed June 26, 2012), “no person may offer to
enter into, confirm the execution of, or m@im a position in, any transaction” in any
agricultural commodity, including the agriculal commodities identifig in Paragraph 37 above,

unless otherwise exempt under 17 C.F.R. § 32.13 (2012) (repealed June 26, 2012).
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60. 17 C.F.R. 8§ 32.11(a) & (b) (2012) (refgebJune 26, 2012), prale, in relevant
part, that “it shall be unlawful . . . for any person to solicit or accept orders for, or to accept
money, securities or property aonnection with, the purchase or sale of any commaodity option,
or to supervise any person or persons sogemjaunless the commaodity option transaction is
exempt under [17 C.F.R. 8] 32.4, or is “conducted osutmject to the rules of a contract market
or a foreign broad of trade in accordance with the provisions of [7 U.S.C. § 6(c)] and any rule,
regulation or order promulgated thereunder.” 17 C.F.R. 8§ 32.&1({&) (2012) (repealed June
26, 2012).

61. During the period from May 2011 through June 25, 2012, BdB Ltd., ETBO and
BO Systems violated 7 U.S.C. § 6¢(b) (2012), and 17 C.F.R. 88 32.2 and 32.11 (2012) (repealed
June 26, 2012), by offering or entering into, confirming the execution of trades, maintaining a
position in, and/or soliciting and accepting ord@nsd funds) from U.S. customers to trade,
binary option contracts not excepted or exempted from the Commission’s ban on trading options
off-exchange, including with U.S. customers that are not ECPs. None of these transactions
occurred on a DCM, EBOT drona fideFBOT.

62. BdB Ltd., ETBO and BO Systems are not and have never been exempt from the
requirements of 7 U.S.C. § 6¢(b) (2012), pursuareither 17 C.F.R. 88 32.4(a) & (b) or 32.13
(2012) (repealed June 26, 2012).

63. The acts of the agents and employees of BdB Ltd., ETBO and BO Systems
undertaken on each of their behalves occurredmitie scope of their employment. Defendants
BdB Ltd, ETBO and BO Systems are therefore liable for their agents’ and employees’ acts,

omissions, or failures pursuant to 7 U.8Q(a)(1)(B) (2012), and 17 C.F.R. § 1.2 (2012).
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64. Laurent is liable under 7 U.S.C. 8§ 13c(b) (2012), as a controlling person of BdB
Ltd., ETBO, and BO Systems, for their violatiarfshe Act and the Regulations because he
controlled, directly or indirectly, BdB Ltd., ETB@nd BO Systems and did not act in good faith
or knowingly induced, directly or indirdgt the acts constituting the violations.

5. Corporate Defendants Violated of 7 U.S.C. 88 6¢(b),

and 2(e) (2012) and 17 C.F.R. § 32.2 (2013), and
Laurent Is Liable Under 7 U.S.C. 13c(b) (2012)

65. OnJuly 21, 2010, Congress amended the Act by enacting the Dodd-Frank Wall
Street Reform and Consumer Protection #2010 (“Dodd-Frank”), 7 U.S.C. 8t seq
(2012), which, among other things, expanded aadfigd the CFTC's jurisdiction over swaps.
As relevant here, Dodd-Frank defined an option as a swap, with the exception of options subject
to 7 U.S.C. 88 2(c)(2)(C) & 2(c)(2)(D) (2012podd-Frank became effective on July 16, 2011.
66. 7 U.S.C. 8 1a(47)(i) (2012), defineSsavap” — unless otherwise excluded under 7
U.S.C. § 1a(47)(i)(B) (2012) —to include “any egment, contract or transaction . . . that is a
put, call, cap, floor, collar, or similar option of any kind that is for the purchase or sale, or based
on the value, of 1 or more interest or other rates, currencies, commaodities, securities, instruments
of indebtedness, indices, quantitative measure, or other financial or economic interests or
property of any kind.”
67. On June 26, 2012, Part 32 of the Regutetiwas repealed and a new Part 32, 17
C.F.R. Part 32 (2013) went into effect. 17 C.F.R. § 32.2 (2013), makes it unlawful for
any person or group of persons to offer to enter into, enter into,
confirm the execution of, maintain a position in, or otherwise
conduct activity related to any transaction in interstate commerce
that is a commodity option a@nsaction, unless: (a) Such
transaction is conducted in coligmce with and subject to the

provisions of the Act, including any Commission rule, regulation,
or order thereunder, otherwise applicable to any other swap . . . .
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68. 7 U.S.C. 8§ 2(e) (2012) makes it unlawful for
any person, other than an eligible contract participant, to enter into a swap
unless the swap is entered into on, or subject to the rules of, a board of
trade designated as a contract market under section 5.

69. During the period from October, 2012dhgh at least March 2013, the Corporate
Defendants violated 7 U.S.C. 88 6¢(b) & 2(e)X2)) and 17 C.F.R. § 32.2 (2013), by offering to
enter into and entering into binary option tractsons with U.S. customers who were not ECPs,
and confirming the execution of those binaptions not excepted or exempted from the
Commission’s ban on trading options off-exchange, including with U.S. customers that are not
ECPs. None of these transactions occurred on a DCM, EBOTharaafideFBOT.

70.  The Corporate Defendants are not and have never been exempt from the
requirements of 7 U.S.C. 88 6¢(b) & 2(8P12), pursuant to 17 C.F.R. § 32.2 (2013).

71. The acts of the agents and employedbh@fCorporate Defendants undertaken on
each of their behalves occurred within the scope of their employment. The Corporate
Defendants are therefore liable for their agesnisl employees’ acts, omissions, or failures
pursuant to 7 U.S.C. § 2(a)(1)(B012) and 17 C.F.R. § 1.2 (2013).

72. Laurent is liable under 7 U.S.C. 8§ 13c(b) (2012), as a controlling person of the
Corporate Defendants for their violations of #hct and the Regulatioeecause he controlled,
directly or indirectly, the Cquorate Defendants and knowinghduced, directly or indirectly,
the acts constituting the violations.

6. Corporate Defendants Violated 7 U.S.C. 8 6(a) (2012), and
Laurent Is Liable Under 7 U.S.C. 13c(b) (2012)

73. U.S.C. 8§ 2(c)(2)(D) (2012), provides:
Except as provided in clause (ii) [not applicable here], this

subparagraph shall apply to anyegmnent, contract, or transaction
in any commodity that is — (I) entered into with, or offered to (even
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if not entered into with), a person that is not an [ECP] or eligible
commercial entity; and (ll) enteteinto, or offered (even if not
entered into), on a leveraged or margined basis, or financed by the
offeror, the counterparty, or a person acting in concert with the
offeror or counterparty on a similar basis.
74. 7 U.S.C. 8 2(c)(2)(D)(iii) (2012), as re&nt here, further provides that 7 U.S.C. §
6(a) (2012), applies to any agreement, camtiar transaction described in 7 U.S.C. 8
2(c)(2)(D)(i) (2012), “as if the agreement, contract, or transaction” was a futures contract.
75. 7 U.S.C. § 6(a) (2012), as relevhete, makes it unlawful for any person

to offer to enter into, to enter into, to execute, to confirm the
execution of, or to conduct any office or business anywhere in the
United States, its territories, or possessions, for the purpose of
soliciting, or accepting any order farr otherwise dealing in, any
transaction in, or in connection Wjta contract for the purchase or
sale” a futures contract “(other tharcontract which is made on or
subject to the rules of a board of trade, exchange, or market located
outside of the United States, i&gritories or possessions) unless —

(1) such transaction is conducted on or subject to the rules of a
board of trade which has been designated or registered by the
Commission as a contract market or derivatives transaction
execution facility for such commodity;

(2) such contract is executed or consummated by or through a
contract market; and

(3) such contract is evidenced by arecord . . . .
76. During the period from July, 2011 through at least March 2013, the Corporate
Defendants violated 7 U.S.C. § 6(a) (2012), beca)sieey were not designated or registered as
a contract market or derivatives transaction execution facility and its contracts were not executed
or consummated by or through @ntract market; 2) offered to tm into, entered into, confirmed
the execution of, and conducted business in the U.S.; 3) for the purpose of soliciting or accepting

orders for; 4) off-exchange leveraged or magdinetail commodity transactions; 5) with U.S.
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customers; 6) who are not ECRe€7 U.S.C. § 1(a)(18) (20129y 7) eligide commercial
entities éee7 U.S.C. § 1(a)(17) (2012).

77. The Corporate Defendants are not and have never been exempt from the
requirements of 7 U.S.C. § 6(a) (201@)rsuant to 7 U.S.C. § 6(c) (2012).

78. The acts of the agents and employedbh@fCorporate Defendants, undertaken on
each of their behalves occurred within the scope of their employment. The Corporate
Defendants are therefore liable for their agesisl employees’ acts, omissions, or failures
pursuant to 7 U.S.C. § 2(a)(1)(B012), and 17 C.F.R. § 1.2 (2013).

79. Laurent is liable under 7 U.S.C. 8§ 13c(b) (2012), as a controlling person of the
Corporate Defendants, for their violations of #hct and the Regulations because he controlled,
directly or indirectly, the Oporate Defendants and did not act in good faith or knowingly
induced, directly or indirectly, the acts constituting the violations.

7. Defendants BdB Ltd., ETBO, and BO Systems Violated of 7 U.S.C. 88 6d(a),

and 2(c)(2)(B)(iv)()(aa) (2012) and 1T.F.R 8§ 5.3(a)(4)(i)(B) (2015), and
Laurent Is Liable Under 7 U.S.C. 13c(b) (2012)

80. 7 U.S.C. § 6d(a) (2012), as relevant here, makes it unlawful for “any person to be
a futures commission merchant unless — (1) ga&rkon shall have regesed, under this Act,
with the Commission as such futures commissiorchent and such regration shall not have
expired nor been suspended nor revoked . . ..”

81. 7 U.S.C. 8 2(c)(2)(B)(iv)()(aa) (2013s relevant here, states that an FCM
cannot solicit or accept orders from non-ECPsannection with agreements, contracts or

transaction involving forex options.
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82. 17 C.F.R. 8 5.3(a)(4)()(B) (2015), requires that all FCMs who solicit or accept
orders from any person that is not an ECPoimnection with any retail fex transaction must be
registered.

83. During the period from July 16, 2011 through at least March 2013, BdB Ltd.,
ETBO, and BO Systems each operated as an FCM by (i) soliciting and accepting orders for the
purchase or sale of swaps, retail forex traisas, retail commodityransactions, and/or
commodity options, (ii) acting as a counterpdatyetail commaodity options transactions, and
(iif) accepting money, securities, or property to margin, guarantee, or secure any trades or
contracts that resulted therefrom. BdB Ltd., ETB@®d BO Systems engaged in the transactions
described in (i)4(i)) with non-ECPs.

84. BdB Ltd., ETBO, and BO Systems have never been registered with the
Commission as an FCM, or in any other capaeitbd are not exempt from the requirements of 7
U.S.C. § 6d(a) (2012).

85.  Accordingly, BdB Ltd., ETBO, and BO Systems violated 7 U.S.C. 88 6d(a) and
2(c)(2)(B)(iv)(l)(aa) (2012), and 17 C.F.R. § 5.3(a)(4)(i) (2015).

86. The acts of agents and employees of BdB Ltd., ETBO, and BO Systems
undertaken on each of their behalves occurrékinvthe scope of their employment. BdB Ltd.,
ETBO, and BO Systems are therefore liable for their agents’ and employees’ acts, omissions, or
failures pursuant to 7 U.S.C. § 2(a)@)(2012) and 17 C.F.R. § 1.2 (2013).

87. Laurent is liable under 7 U.S.C. 8§ 13c(b) (2012), as a controlling person of BdB
Ltd., ETBO, and BO Systems for their violatioofsthe Act and the Regulations because he
controlled, directly or indirectly, BdB Ltd., ETB@nd BO Systems and did not act in good faith

or knowingly induced, directly or indirdgt the acts constituting the violations.
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IV. PERMANENT INJUNCTION

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

88. Based upon and in connection with thefwming conduct, pursuant to 7 U.S.C.
§ 13a-1 (2012), Defendants and any other pers@mtiy associated with any one of them, are
permanently enjoined from engaging in conductiatation of 7 U.S.C. 88 6¢(b), 6(a), and 2(e)
(2012); and 17 C.F.R. § 32.2 (2015);

89. BdB Ltd., ETBO, BO Systems, and Laurent, and any other person
or entity associated with any one of them, are permanently enjoined from
engaging in conduct in violation 7 UCS5.88 6d(a) and 2(c)(2)(B)(iv)(l)(aa)

(2012), and 17 C.F.R. 8§ 5.3(a)(6)(i) (2015);

90. Defendants, and any of their agents, servants, employees, assigns, attorneys, and
persons in active concert or participation witly ane of them, including any successor thereof,
are permanently enjoined from, while in violatiofithe Act or Regulations, including 7 U.S.C.
88 6¢(b), 6(a), 6d(a), 2(e), and 2(c)@)iv)(I)(aa) (2012), or 17 C.F.R. 88 32.2 and
5.3(a)(4)())(B) (2015), directly or indirectly:

I. Entering into any transactions with any person located in
the United States involving “commodity interests” (as that term is
defined in 17 C.F.R. 8§ 1.3(yy) (2015);

il. Controlling or directing the trading for or on behalf of any
other person or entity located in the United States, whether by
power of attorney or otherwise, in any account involving
commodity interests;

iii. Soliciting, offering, maintaining a positon in, confirming

the execution of, or accepting any orders or funds from any person
located in the United States for the purpose of purchasing or

selling any commaodity interests; and

iv.  Operating the Banc de Binary website.
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91. Defendants, and any of their agents, servants, employees, assigns,
attorneys, and persons in active conoeiparticipation with any one of them,
including any successor thereof, are permanently enjoined from directly or
indirectly soliciting, offering, maintaining a position in, confirm the execution of,
or accepting any orders or funds from g@@yson located in the United States for
the purpose of purchasing or selling any commodity interest as long as there is

any amount due and owing by the Defendants under this Consent Order.

V. RESTITUTION, DISGORGEMENT AND CIVIL MONETARY PENALTY
A. RESTITUTION
92. Defendants shall pay, jointly and selly, restitution in the amount of Seven
Million, One Hundred Thousand U.S. Dollars ($J0,000) (“Restitution Oblation”) payable as
follows:

a. $3.1 million shall be paid to the Naial Futures Association (“NFA”), a
self-regulatory organization regulated by the CFTC, upon execution of and in accordance
with this Consent Order and the Judgments@adsents to Final Judgments entered in
the SEC Action against the Defendants; and

b. $4 Million ($4,000,000) is due and owing aisdo be paid in separate $1
million increments to the NFA on or before the following dates: February 28, 2016;
September 30, 2016; February 28, 201 &eptember 29, 2017, provided, however,
that the Defendants may elect to pay, ihduin part, any one of the four scheduled
payments for the $4,000,000.00 disgorgement dvafore the due dates set forth above;

and
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C. In the event that Defendants fail to make any payment toward the
$4,000,000.00 disgorgement amount by the dates and/or in the amounts set forth above in
Paragraph 92(b) on or before the date agreed and/or in the amount agreed according to
the schedule set forth in Paragraph 92(b) aball outstanding payments and monetary
amounts under this Consent Order, minus@ayments made, including post-judgment
interest, shall become immediately due anéhgvat the discretion of CFTC staff without
further application to or order from the Court. Defendants will deliver proof of payment
through a letter from its counsel, Ifrah PLL@h firm letterhead indicating the date on
which a wire was sent from Ifrah PLLEXient Account to the NFA and the wire
confirmation details. Such a letter will be delivered on or before the date of payment, as
specified herein. Receipt of such a letter by the NFA will constitute timely payment. To
the extent Ifrah PLLC is no longer representing Defendants, Defendants acknowledges
and agrees that a payment to the Nationairiés Association is only deemed received
according to the records of the NFA showing a deposit into the “Banc de Binary —
Restitution Fund. Post-judgment interest shatljin to accrue on the date of the first
failure to make any payment as set fortfParagraph 92(b) above, and shall accrue and
be applied thereafter to all st&inding monetary amounts.

93. Defendants acknowledge that they, in this action and the SEC Action, have placed
$5,050,000.00 in escrow towards the Restitution Otiigaand agree that these funds will be
released upon entry of this Consent Order aadlitiigment entered he SEC Action, and paid
in accordance with this Consent Order and Juddsnend Consents to Final Judgments entered
in the SEC Action.

94. Post-judgment interest shall accarethe Restitution Obligation on any
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delinquent amounts and shall beéetenined by using the Treasury Bill rate prevailing on the
date of the delinquency pursudo 28 U.S.C. § 1961 (2012).

95. To effect payment of the Restitution Obligation and the distribution of any
restitution payments to Defendants’ custosniie Court appoints the NFA as Monitor
(“Monitor”). The Defendants shall pay the Restitution Obligation as set forth in Paragraphs 92-
93 above, and the Monitor shall receive resittu payments from Defendants and make
distributions as set forth in Paragraphs 96-4€lbw. Because the Monitor is acting as an
officer of this Court in performing these servicdge NFA shall not be liable for any action or
inaction arising from NFA'’s appointment aoNtor, other than actions involving fraud.

96. Defendants shall make Restitution Ollign payments under this Consent Order
to the Monitor in the name “Banc de BinarRestitution Fund” and shall send such Restitution
Obligation payments by electronic funds transfelyytJ.S. postal monegrder, certified check,
bank cashier’s, or bank money order, to a locegieecified by the Office of Administration,
National Futures Association, 300 South Riverside Plaza, Suite 1800, Chicago, lllinois 60606
under cover letter that identifies the payinand the name and docket number of this
proceeding. Defendants shall simultansly transmit copies of the cover letter and the form of
payment to the Chief Financial Officer and thedator, Division of Enforcement, Commodity
Futures Trading Commission, Three Lafayette Centre, 1155 21st Street, NW, Washington, D.C.
20581.

97. The Monitor shall oversee the Restitution Obligation and shall have the discretion
to determine the manner of distribution of sfighds in an equitablfashion to Defendants’
customers identified by the CFTC and in the SEC Action in (a list of which is attached hereto as

Exhibit A and incorporated by reference), or may defer distribution until such time as the
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Monitor deems appropriate. In the event the Mamis unable to distbute all funds contained
in the Banc-de-Binary Restitution Fund to thedelants’ customers identified on Exhibit A, the
remaining funds will be transfedo the United States Treas@ay civil monetary penalties.

98. Defendants shall cooperatéh the Monitor as appropriate to provide such
information as the Monitor deems necessary andogpaite to ensure the accuracy of Exhibit A
and provide contact information to locatef@wlants’ customers identified on Exhibit A.

99.  The Monitor shall provide the CFTC and Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”) at the beginning of each calendar year witieport detailing the sbbursement of funds
to Defendants’ customers during the previousryelhe Monitor shall transmit this report under
a cover letter that identifies the name and @bckimber of this proceeding to the Chief
Financial Officer and Director of Enforcente@ommodity Futures Trading Commission, Three
Lafayette Centre, 1155 21st Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20581 as well as to John W. Berry,
Regional Trial Counsel, and Amy Jane Longo, and Leslie A. Hakalaat the following address:
Securities and Exchange Commission, Los ArgBlegional Office, 444 South Flower Street,
Suite 900, Los Angeles, CA 90071, with a copy to A. Jeff |fHaah PLLC, 1627 | Street, NW,
Washington, DC 20006, jeff@ifrahlaw.com.

100. The amounts payable to each customa sbt limit the ability of any customer
from proving in a separate action that a greateount is owed from Defendants or any other
person or entity, and nothing herein shall be construed in any way to limit or abridge the rights of
any customer that exist undgtate or common law.

101. Pursuantto Rule 71 of the Federal RafeSivil Procedure, each of Defendants’
customer who suffered a loss is explicitly made an intended third-party beneficiary of this

Consent Order and may seek to enforce obedieinites Consent Order tobtain satisfaction of
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any portion of the Restitution Obligation that has not been paid by Defendants to ensure
continued compliance with any provision of this Consent Order and to hold Defendants in
contempt for any violations of giprovision of this Consent Order.

B. CIVIL MONETARY PENALTY

102. Defendants shall pay, jointly and severadl civil monetary penalty in the amount
of Two Million U.S. Dollars ($2,000,000) (“CMP Obligan”), plus post-judgment interest. The
civil monetary penalty is dugnd owing on or before Sephber 29, 2017, with post-judgment
interest beginning to accrue on that date. Postapgdg interest shall be determined by using the
Treasury Bill rate prevailing on the date of entry of this Consent Order pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §
1961 (2012).

103. Defendants shall pay their CMP Obtiga by electronic funds transfer, U.S.
postal money order, certified check, bank cashier’s check, or bank money order. If payment is to
be made other than by electronic funds tran#fen the payment shall be made payable to the
Commodity Futures Trading Commissiand sent to the address below:

Commodity Futures Trading Commission

Division of Enforcement

ATTN: Accounts Receivables

DOT/FAA/IMMAC/AMZ-341

CFTC/ICPSC/SEC

6500 S. MacArthur Blvd.

Oklahoma City, OK 73169

(405) 954-7262 office

(405) 954-1620 fax

nikki.gibson@faa.gov

If payment by electronic funds transferctsosen Defendants shall contact Nikki Gibson
or her successor at the address above to repajwaent instructions and shall fully comply with

those instructions. Defendants shall accompany payment of the CMP Obligation with a cover

letter that identifies Defendants and the name and docket number of this proceeding. Defendants
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shall simultaneously transmit copies of the cover letter and the form of payment to the Chief
Financial Officer and the Director of Enfament, Commodity Futures Trading Commission,
Three Lafayette Centre, 1155 21st Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20581.
C. PROVISIONS RELATED TO MONETARY RESTITUTION

104. With respect to Defendants’ RestivutiObligation under this Consent Order to
pay, jointly and severally, restitutiom the amount of $7,100,000.00, Defendants knowingly,
intentionally and unconditionally:

a. accept the Defendants’ Restitution Obligation and consents unreservedly
to the enforcement thereof;

b. forever waive, forfeit and surrendamy and all rights, privileges, or
opportunities that they might otherwise hdnaal to challenge, contest or dispute the
validity, the enforceability or the collectability of Defendants’ Restitution Obligation in
any jurisdiction or before any tribunal whatsoever (including, but not limited to,
jurisdictions or tribunals withior outside the United States, such as jurisdictions and/or
tribunals where the Defendant is incorpethtconducts business or operations, maintains
assets, pays taxes, or has any connection whatsoever, including but not limited to, the
States of Israel, Cyprusné Seychelles) (hereinafter, “ajurisdiction or tribunal”);

C. agree and acknowledge, and do notestndr dispute that the Court has
jurisdiction over the Defendants and has auty@nd jurisdiction to enter this Consent
Order against the Defendants;

d. agree and acknowledge, and do notesindr dispute that Defendants are
subject to the Consent Order and wererdtd the right to be heard and raise their

arguments before the Court;
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e. agree and acknowledge, and do maottest or dispute that the Consent
Order is no longer appealable;

f. agree and acknowledge, and do rmttest or dispute that the Consent
Order is executable in the United States and was rendered by a competent court according
to the laws of the United States;

g. agree and acknowledge, and do mottest or dispute that the Consent
Order may be enforced in any foreign jurtsn or tribunal inthe same manner as a
judgment delivered by a court ofathforeign jurisdiction or tribunal,

h. agree and acknowledge, and do not comtedispute that the substance of
the Consent Order is not contrary to public ppfcinciples in the United States or in any
other jurisdiction or tribunal;

I. agree and acknowledge, and do rmttest or dispute that the Consent
Order has been made on mantd was not issued due tpmcedural default or other
procedural reason;

J- agree and acknowledge, and do rmttest or dispute that the Consent
Order was not obtained by fraud or undue influence;

K. agree and acknowledge, and do rottest or dispute that the Consent
Order is not contradictory to any other judgment that is still valid and was issued in this
action, the SEC action, or anyhet matter between the parties;

l. agree and acknowledge and do not eshor dispute that except for the
SEC action, there is no pending lawsuit aygeeding regarding the same matter of this
action and between thersa parties before anyrisdiction or tribunal,

m. agree and acknowledge and do not comtedispute that by entering into
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this Consent Order, the Consent Ordeps® factoexecutory in a foreign jurisdiction

and may be enforced in that jurisdiction in the same manner as a judgment delivered by
the courts of that jurisdiction withoutighConsent Order and judgment being first

declared to be executory by that court;

n. agree to cooperate with, and not to oppose, any effort by the CFTC, or any
party acting on behalf of the CFTC, to collect payments due and owing under the
Defendants’ Restitution Obligatioms any jurisdiction or tribunal,

0. consent to the entry of a confessodpudgment, or anditional judgment,
in the forms attached hereto as Exhibits BirDorder to collect payments due and owing
on Defendants’ Restitution Obligation, and further agrees to and shall sign all forms
attached hereto as Exhibits B-D and coopenatie any effort taken by the CFTC, or any
party acting on its behalf, to enforce Defemicipayment obligations under the Consent
Order in any jurisdiction or tribunal,

p. agree to pay all attorney fees and other costs incurred by the CFTC or SEC
in any jurisdiction or tribunal to colleeiny delinquent payments due and owing under
the Defendants’ Restitution Obligation pursuant to the schedule set forth in Paragraphs
92-93 (and such fees and costs must be paid within 30 days of receiving written notice
from the CFTC or SEC of such fees and costs);

g. agree that (a) service of any pagdéesl in any jurisdition or tribunal by
the CFTC or any party acting on behalf o tBFTC to collect payments due and owing
under the Defendants’ Restitution Obligationynb@ made by emadind/or regular mail
on A. Jeff Ifrah, Ifrah Law PLLC, 1717 Pennsylvania Avenue N.W., Suite 650,

Washington, D.C. 20006; and (b) any service accomplished in the above-described
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manner is sufficient and binding on thef@sdants under the governing law of the

applicable jurisdiction, and Dendants waive any right to dispute or challenge such

service.

105. Partial Satisfction: Acceptance by the Commission/CFTC or the Monitor of any
partial payment of Defendants’ Restitution Obligation or CMP Obligation shall not be deemed a
waiver of their obligations to maKerther payments pursuant to this Consent Order, or a waiver
of the Commission/CFTC'’s right to seek to compel payment of any remaining balance.

106. Cooperation: Defendantsadiicooperate fully and expeditiously with the CFTC,
including the CFTC'’s Division of Enforcemetitie SEC, any other governmental agency
operating on either of their behatfconnection with this aah or the SEC Action, and the NFA
in this action, and in any investigation, cildigation, or administratig matter related to the
subject matter of this action or any currenfudure Commission investigation related thereto.

As part of such cooperation, Defendants agree to:

e provide to the CFTC, SEC and NFAaadditional datae.g. CRM data,
necessary to facilitate the paymentedtitution, including but not limited to
investors' addresseadphone numbers and other such intonation in the
Defendants' possession; and

e concurrently with execution of this Card Order, execute the confessions of
judgment, lien and waiver forms identiien Paragraph 104(o) above, and agree
in the future to execute such further forms that the CFTC or SEC may deem
necessary to enforce this Consent Order as to Defendants’ Restitution Obligations
in any other jurisdiction, foreign or domestic.

VI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

107. Notice: All notices required to be givby any provision in this Consent Order

shall be sent certified mail, return receipt requested, as follows:
Notice to CFTC:

Rick Glaser, Deputy Director
U.S. Commaodity Futures Trading Commission
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1155 21 St. N.W,,
Washington, DC 20581
rglaser@cftc.gov

(202) 418-5358

(202) 418-5937 (facsimile)

Kathleen Banar, Chief Trial Attorney

U.S. Commaodity Futures Trading Commission
1155 21 St. N.W.,

Washington, DC 20581

kbanar@cftc.gov

(202) 418-5335

(202) 418-5937 (facsimile)

Notice to Defendast

A. Jeff Ifrah

IFRAH PLLC

1717 Pennsylvania Avenue, Suite 650
Washington, D.C. 20006

Telephone: 202-524-4140

Facsimile: 202-521-4141
jeff@ifrahlaw.com

All such notices to the CFTC shall reference the name and docket number of this action.

108. Change of Address/Phone: Until stioie as Defendants satisfy in full their
Restitution Obligation, Disgorgement Obligation, and CMP Obligation as set forth in this
Consent Order, Defendants shall provide written notice to the Commission by certified mail of
any change to his telephone ruen and mailing address withimtél0) calendar days of the
change.

109. Entire Agreement and Amendments: Toamsent Order incorporates all of the
terms and conditions of the settlement among the parties hereto to date. Nothing shall serve to
amend or modify this Consent Order in any respect whatsoever, unless: (a) reduced to writing;
(b) signed by all parties hereto; afo) approved by order of this Court.

110. Invalidation: If any provision of thisdbisent Order or if the application of any

provision or circumstance is held invalid, thine remainder of thi€onsent Order and the
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application of the provision to any other persoriocumstance shall not be affected by the
holding.

111. Waiver: The failure of any party to ti@®nsent Order or of any customer at any
time to require performance of any provision of this Consent Order shall in no manner affect the
right of the party or customer at a later time to enforce the same or any other provision of this
Consent Order. No waiver in one or moreanses of the breach of any provision contained in
this Consent Order shall be deemed to be ortnoet$ as a further or continuing waiver of such
breach or waiver of the breach of any other provision of this Consent Order.

112. Waiver of Service, and Acknowledgemddefendant(s) waive service of this
Consent Order and agree(s) that entry of this Consent Order by the Court and filing with the
Clerk of the Court will constitute notice toetlbefendant(s) of its terms and conditions.

113. Continuing Jurisdiction of this Court: i$iCourt shall retaijurisdiction of this
action to ensure compliance with this Consent Order and for all other purposes related to this
action, including any motion by Defendants todtfy or for relief from the terms of this
Consent Order.

114. Injunctive and EquitabRelief Provisions: The injutive and equitable relief
provisions of this Consent Order shall beding upon Defendas, upon any person under their
authority or control, and upon any person who receives actual notice of this Cordemtoy
personal service, e-malil, facsimile or otherwise insofar as he or she is acting in active concert or
participation with Defendants.

115. Authority: BdB Ltd. hereby warrants that the undersigned Oren Shabat Laurent is
a shareholder of BdB Ltd., that this Cons®ndler has been duly authorized by BdB Ltd, and

that Oren Shabat Laurent has been duly empowered to sign and submit this Consent Order and
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all exhibits hereto on behalf &dB Ltd. ETBO hereby warrants that the undersigned Oren

Shabat Laurent is a director and sharehadl&TBO, that this Consent Order has been duly
authorized by ETBO, and that Oren Shabat Laurent has been duly empowered to sign and submit
this Consent Order and all exhibits heretdehalf of ETBO. BO Systems hereby warrants:

that BO Systems, Ltd., by resolution of its Bibaf Directors, changed its name to Banc De

Binary Limited, Seychelles; that despite the name change, Banc De Binary Limited, Seychelles

is the one and the same company as Defer®larystems, Ltd., Seychelles, and maintains the
same company Registration No. in the Repulili§eychelles of 102922; that the undersigned

Oren Shabat Laurent is the ultimate benaficishareholder of Banc De Binary Limited,

Seychelles (formerly named and registered and registered in Seychelles as BO Systems); that this
Consent Order has been duly authorized by BO Systems (now named and registered as Banc De
Binary Limited, Seychelles); and that the undgred Oren Shabat Laurent has been duly
empowered to sign and submit this Consent Order and all exhibits hereto on behalf of BO
Systems (now named and registered as Banc De Binary Limited, Seychelles), and that. Oren
Shabat Laurent has been lawfully appointedigm the Consent Order on behalf of BO Systems

Ltd. (now named and registered as Banc De Binary Limited, Seychelles), according to the
resolution of the Board of Directors in itseeting on January 17, 2016 to approve the Consent
Order and to authorize Oren Shabat Lautersign it on its behalfBDB Services hereby

warrants that the undersigned Sandrine M@taudia Rassool is the sole director and

shareholder of BDB Services, that this GamsOrder has been duly authorized by BDB

Services, and that Sandrine Marie Claudia Rassool has been duly empowered to sign and submit

this Consent Order and all exhiblitsreto on behalf of BDB Services.
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116. Counterparts and Facsimile Executidimis Consent Order may be executed in
two or more counterparts, all which shall be considered oaad the same agreement and shall
become effective when one or more counterpaste baen signed by each of the parties hereto
and delivered (by facsimile, e-madl; otherwise) to the other gig, it being understood that all
parties need not sign the saominterpart. Any counterpart other signature to this Consent
Order that is delivered by any means shaltibemed for all purposes as constituting good and
valid execution and delivery by such party of this Consent Order.

117. Contempt: Defendants understand that the terms of the Consent Order are
enforceable through contempt proceedings, and that, in any such proceedings they may not
challenge the validity of this Consent Order.

118. Agreements and Undertakings: Defertdahall comply with all of the
undertakings and agreements set forth in this Consent Order.

There being no just reason for delay, the Clerk of the Court is hereby ordered to
enter thisConsent Order For Permanent InjunaticCivil MonetaryPenalty And Other

Equitable Relief Against Defendamfésthwith and without further notice.

IT IS SO ORDERED on this 26th _day of FePruary 2016.

Miranda M. Du
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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CONSENTED TO AND APPROVED
BY:

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFF
U.S. COMMODITY FUTURES
TRADING COMMISSION

By: /s/ Margaret Aisenbrey

Kathleen Banar

(202) 418-5335

(202) 418-5987 facsimile
kbanar@cftc.gov

(ll. Bar No. 6200597)

Margaret Aisenbrey
(816) 960-7749

(816) 960-7751 facsimile
maisenbrey@cftc.gov
(Mo. Bar No. 59560)

Kim G. Bruno

(202) 418-5368

(202) 418-5987 facsimile
kbruno@cftc.gov

(DC. Bar N0.389899)

U.S. Commaodity Futures Trading
Commission

1155 2% Street NW

Washington, D.C. 20581

Blaine T. Welsh (NV Bar No. 4790)
Assistant United States Attorney
United States Attorney’s Office

333 Las Vegas Boulevard, Suite 5000

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
blaine.welsh@usdoj.gov
(702) 388-6336

(702) 388-6787 (facsimile)

ATTORNEYS FOR DEFENDANTS
BANC DE BINARY LTD., ET
BINARY OPTIONS LTD., BO
SYSTEMS LTD., BDB SERVICES
LTD., AND OREN SHABAT
LAURENT (A/K/A OREN SHABAT
AND OREN COHEN)

By: /s/ A. Jeff Ifrah

A. Jeff Ifrah
jeff@ifrahlaw.com
Rachel Hirsch
rhirsch@ifrahlaw.com

IFRAH PLLC

1717 Pennsylvania Avenue
Suite 650

Washington, D.C. 20006
Telephone: 202-524-4140
Facsimile: 202-521-4141

Craig S. Denney

Snell & Wilmer L.L.P.

50 West Liberty Street, Suite 510
Reno, NV 89501

775-785-5440 (office)
775-785-5411 (direct)
775-785-5441 (fax)
cdenney@swlaw.com

(NV Bar No. 6953)
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Serial No. 51-2016

AUTHENTICATION OF SIGNATURE

I the undersigned, Seagull Cohen, Adv.&
Notary, at 11 Tuval st. Ramat Gan, 52522
hereby certify that on February 9% 2016 there
appeared before me at my office Mr. OHAD
TZKHORI whose identity was proved to me by
Passport no. 20733620 issued by Authority-
LC. at TEL-AVIV-YAFO on Feb 11% 2013
And signed of his own free will the attached
document marked A1-A43.

In witness whereof I hereby authenticate the
signature of Mr. OHAD TZKHORI by my own
signature and seal today February 9 2016,

Fees paid: 194 NIS including VAT,

Signature

51-2016 7170 7901
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J1NN M0 Ty 12 20 PR NEINR HN
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Notary’s Seal
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Cefxse 2 13-cv-00992-MMD-VCF Documen 169 Filed 02/22/16 Page 40 of 52

£)'d

DEFENDANTS

DEFENPANT Oren Shabat Laurent
By: Ofen Shabat Laurent

31 Sasha Argov St.
Tel Aviv, Israel
I hereby confirm that on 6) ,c} l )ﬁb-( l [date], Mr. Oren Shabat Laurent, has
appeared before me and is known to me; afﬁrmad his si. on this Consent Order; and has
signed it before me in my presence. % ﬂl;‘ﬁ%:ggate
Ohad Téher’
ADVOCATE

38 Tuval St.. Ramat Gan Israel

DEFENDANT Banc de Binary, Ltd.

By: Oren Shabat Laurent, Shareholder of
Defendant Banc de Binary Ltd.

Kanika International Business Centre,
Office 401, Profiti Ilias 4, Germasogeia
4046, Limassol, Cyprus

L , am a licensed lawyer in

, with the title of at [company,

firm]. ihereby affirm that Banc de Binary, Ltd.’s decision to execute and enter into this Consent
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Serial No. 49-2016

AUTHENTICATION OF SIGNATURE

I the undersigned, Seagull Cohen, Adv.&
Notary, at 11 Tuval st. Ramat Gan, 52522
hereby certify that on February 9" 2016 there
appeared before me at my office Mr. OHAD
TZKHORI whose identity was proved to me by
Passport no. 20733620 issued by Authority-
I.C. at TEL-AVIV-YAFO on Feb 11" 2013
And signed of his own free will the attached
document marked A1-A43.

In witness whereof 1 hereby authenticate the
signature of Mr. OHAD TZKHORI by my own
signature and seal today February 9" 2016.

Fees paid: 194 NIS including VAT.

Signature
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Notary’s Seal

[ /11 2200 2307 1PI0M 7MY TIwn 100 Y30 Twna pan it Thon
03-6138550 D79 03-6138555 'H0



P A —— | e
10 -~ 2016 APOSTILLE 10 -02- 201
DISTt;’IJgT,(?g g e L - S 911’!“ YIND VOVN I3
IS TRICT CO KL OSTATE OF ISRAEL ; NOE{THL-AVY)
This public document 7 MR qaon
2. Has been signed by Y773 BN .2
Advocate \ g\ *‘S-t 'Oy
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4 .bears the seal/stamp of NRNINT/BMTT R KR .4
the above Notary Leam Pt Sw
Certified TN
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8. Serial number LA_M__
9. Seal /Stamp
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Case 2:13-cv-00992-MMD-VCF Docuﬂe\r‘lt 169?1[ \*Filed 02/22/16 Page 43 of 52
9= o

DEFENDANT EX Binary Options, Ltd.
By: Oren Shajt Laurent, Director and
Defendant ET Binary

rﬂ

Options, Ltd.
38 Tuval St., Ramat Gan, Israel

I, m&ﬁ 2 ,am a licensed lawyer in

)—'QQPL]: i , with the title of tg[ h{ Qgh£§ at [company,

firm]. | hereby affirm that ET Binary Options, Ltd.’s decision to execute and enter into this

Consent Order has been made in accordance with the law and pursuant to all the relevant
corporate documents and the relevant Companies laws. I further affirm that Oren Shabat Laurent
has been lawfully appointed to sign this Consent Order on behalf of ET Binary Options, Ltd.,
and [ affirm that his signing on this Consent Order is with the authorization of ET Binary
Options, Ltd.’s Board of Directors, according to the resolution of the ET Binary Options, Ltd.’s
Board of Directors in its meeting on !_L l ‘ ! l:'-l h [date] to approve the Consent
Order and to authorize Mr. Oren Shabat Laurent to sign it on its behalf, and is therefore legally

binding. I hereby confirm that on ):!;1 4 [date], Mr. Oren Shabat Laurent, has

appeared before me and is known to me; affirmed his signature on this Consent Order; and has

. Y
[Signature] =

Y]

[Name.@\nwﬂf 'T?_ l!-\\h\n
[Title] A/(JWMJ'C

[Addrese], D0 Nouze Lol Bk, jS!\A;.L

signed it before me in my presence.
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Serial No. 50-2016
AUTHENTICATION OF SIGNATURE

I the undersigned, Seagull Cohen, Adv.&
Notary, at 11 Tuval st. Ramat Gan, 52522
hereby certify that on February 9 2016 there
appeared before me at my office Mr. OHAD
TZKHORI whose identity was proved to me by
Passport no. 20733620 issued by Authority-
I.C. at TEL-AVIV-YAFO on Feb 11% 2013
And signed of his own free will the attached
document marked A1-A43.

In witness whereof I hereby authenticate the
signature of Mr. OHAD TZKHORI by my own
signature and seal today February 9™ 2016.

Fees paid: 194 NIS including VAT.
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Case 2:13-cv-00992-MMD-VCF Documen@ﬂég'-i\ ‘Eled 02/22/16 Page 46 of 52

BO Systems Ltd.,

Binary Limited, Seychelles
on No. 102922 (formerly named
and registered as BO Systems, Ltd.,
Seychelles Registration No. 102922), 106
Premier Building, Victoria, Meha,
Seychelles

By: Oren Shabat Laurent

Ultimate Beneficiary Shareholder of Banc
De Binary Limited, Seychelles
Registration No. 102922 (formerly named
and registered as BO Systems, Ltd.,
Seychelles Registration No. 102922), 31
Sasha Argov St., Tel Aviv, Israel

LQ \M.I{, Tl h\a s , am a licensed lawyer in
LAPEL , with the title of /4/LVgadvy at [company,
firm]. I hereby affirm that the decision of BO Systems, Ltd. Seychelles (now named and

registered as Banc De Binary Limited, Seychelles) to execute and enter into this Consent Order
has been made in accordance with the law and pursuaht to all the relevant corporate documents
and the relevant Companies laws. I further affirm that BO Systems, Ltd. in Seychelles, by
resolution of its Board of Directors (“BOD”), changed its name to Banc De Binary Limited,
Seychelles. I affirm that, despite the name change, Banc De Binary Limited, Seychelles is the
one and the same company as Defendant BO Systems, Ltd., Seychelles, and maintains the same
company Registration No. of 102922. I further affirm that Oren Shabat Laurent has been
lawfully appointed to sign this Consent Order on behalf of BO Systems Ltd. Seychelles (now

named and registered as Banc De Binary Limited, Seychelles), according to the resolution of the

BOD in its meeting on to approve the Consent Order and to authorize Mr. Oren
Shabat Laurent to sign it on its behalf, and is therefore legally binding. I hereby confirm that on
.Lll Jof A [date], Mr. Oren Shabat Laurent, has appeared before me and is known

to'me; affirmed his signature on this Consent Order; and has signed it before me in my presence.
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-

N

d Tzkhori, Advocate
Oh?.ice %NZ 46498

[Signature].

[Name]QBAAJlL_\mi
[Title] M\ﬂ‘a 4‘[

[Address] 38 }gal d . QJ: ,BLAE{
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DEFENDANT BdB Services, Ltd.

By: Sandrine Marie Claudia Rassool, Sole
Director and Shareholder of Defendant
BdB Services, Ltd.

106 Premier Building, Victoria, Meha,
Seychelles

’
I, e c ¢ Whuae pe , am a licensed lawyer in
T AP w—igd
Seuwe e Fs , with the title of £ TTsAME / Aties Bt [cc:mpany,

A firm]. I hereby affirm that BdB Services, Ltd.’s decision to execute and enter into this Consent

Order has been made in accordance with the law and pursuant to all the relevant corporate
documents and the relevant Companies laws. I further affirm that Sandrine Marie Claudia
Rassool has been lawfully appointed to sign this Consent Order on behalf of BdB Services, Ltd.,
and [ affirm that her signing on this Consent is with the authorization of BdB Services, Ltd.’s
Board of Directors, according to the resolution of the BdB Services, Ltd.’s Board of Directors in

its meetingon | 1 TM mrﬁdate] to approve the Consent Order and to authorize

Ms. Sandrine Marie Claudia Rassool to sign it on its behalf, and is therefore legally binding. I
[T o Wi Claus
hereby confirm that on v e | [date], Ms. Sandrine Marie Claudia Rassool,

has appeared before me and is known to me; affirmed her signaturg~on this Consent Order; and

has signed it before me in my presence.

[Signature] ,\—-\0

T

Name]_ An~vAE C C  LAAMNCISE

[Title]

[Address]
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APOSTILLE
(Convention de la Haye du 5 Octobrel961)

Country: REPUBLIC OF SEYCHELLES

This public document

has been signed by ANDRE C.C. LABLACHE
acting in the capacity of NOTARY PUBLIC

bears the seal/stamp of ANDRE C.C. LABLACHE
NOTARY PUBLIC
Certified

at  VICTORIA 6. 11" FEBRUARY 2016
by J. ESTICOT, REGISTRAR, SUPREME COURT




DEFENDANTS

DEFENDANT Oren Shabat Laurent
By: Oren Shabat Laurent

31 Sasha Argov St.

Tel Aviv, Israel

I hereby confirm that on [date], Mr. Oren Shabat Laurent, has

appeared before me and is known to me; affirmed his signature on this Consent Order; and has

signed it before me in my presence.

Ohad Tzhori
ADVOCATE

38 Tuval St.. Ramat Gan [srael

K

DEFE T Banc dL Binary, Ltd.

By: OrefyShabat Laurent, Shareholder of
Defend4nt Banc de Binary Ltd.

Kanika International Business Centre,
Office 401, Profiti Ilias 4, Germasogeia
4046, Limassol, Cyprus

I, Cuitra Lampow , am a licensed lawyer in
2 WRES Bloslerteot &
C\g\cu-\ , with the title of \ts«.’m;: Lowier at [company, fxSocrtacs LLC

fipm}. 1 hereby affirm that Banc de Binary, Ltd.’s decision to execute and enter into this Consent

38




Order has been made in accordance with the law and pursuant to all the relevant corporate
documents and the relevant Companies laws. I further affirm that Oren Shabat Laurent has been
lawfully appointed to sign this Consent Order on behalf of Banc de Binary, Ltd., and I affirm that
his signing on this Consent Order is with the authorization of Banc de Binary, Ltd.’s Board of
Directors, according to the resolution of the Banc de Binary, Ltd. Board of Directors in its

meeting on A ©€C. A4S [date] to approve the Consent Order and to authorize Mr.

Oren Shabat Laurent to sign it on its behalf, and is therefore legally binding. I hereby confirm
thaton o €O . 236 [éate], Mr. Oren Shabat Laurent, has appeared before me and is

known to me; affirmed his signature on this Consent Order; and has signed it before me in my

presence.

TR e
[Name] Eva \.m?tm
[Title]_Dssovrage. Lawmer

[Address]_Sgatidoron  Lawlsor \O

3406 L'\mau\&"k

Cugeos

Signed in Limassol Cyprus

ey b st Shbd )

\» the Centifying Officer, 1 certify nnly the signature
which appears on document and assume no

respongibility for, the content} of this document.
In testimony hifeofl 1ha 0 sel IEE hand anc
Official seal [hmr ay of.. .8 e 204

fLS) €500
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Ihis is o certify that the signatwre P. ALEXANDROU
appearing above is the signature of P. ALEXANDROU
a Centifying Officer of Limassol, appointed by the Minister
of the Interior of the Republic of Cyprus, under the Certifying
officers Law, 165(1) 2012, to certify signatures and seals and
-that the seal opposite the said signature is that of the
Certifying Officer of Limassol. The District Officer certifies
only the signature and the seal of the CenifyimOfi
assumes no responsibility for the content ojf thig
LIMASSOL - CYPRUS 1

vue -1 1 FER 2015

O. Stylianou

APOSTILLE
(Convention de La Haye du 5 Octobre 1961)
. Country CYPRUS
This is public document
. BS BEER SIGEADY 1veenrereresrorsensissessensrsessens Q..StylianQu
. acting in the capacity of District Officer

. bears the seal / stamp of the District Officer

_%ﬁeﬂ
. alimssol  Despo Xenofonios 6. the...........)..].EEB. 2016

?n{nam:Smmy
Ministry of Justice and Public Order




